
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Skillern

AGENDA August 06, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Skillern

Minutes Recessed Meeting - July 9, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - July 9, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - July 16, 2014

Res. No. 814-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the Bond of Deputy
Sheriff, the Oaths of Deputy Sheriffs, and the Certificate of Discharge by the Board of
Equalization.

Report Trustee Monthly Report - June 2014

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - June 2014

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - 7-14-14

Report Quarterly Investment Report

Report Quarterly Fee Office Reports

Res. No. 814-2 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Hamilton
County Beer Board, term expiring July 22, 2016.

Res. No. 814-3 A Resolution approving the purchase of an annual maintenance contract for Mobile Law Vehicle
Workstation software and FBR Workstation software amounting to $47,396.76 from TriTech
Software Systems for the Sheriff’s Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-4 A Resolution accepting the bids of Customer Service Electric Supply, Power & Telephone
Supply Company, and Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning August
6, 2014, through February 5, 2015, for communications cable for the Telecommunications
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 814-5 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of June 1, 2014,
through June 30, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-6 A Resolution accepting the bid of Henry Schein, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning
August 6, 2014, through August 5, 2015, for medical gloves amounting to $9.58 per box for
Emergency Medical Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary
to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-7 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$303,400.00 to provide tuberculosis control services  in Hamilton County for a time period of July
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and to reduce the Revenue and Expense Budgets by
$73,200.00.

Res. No. 814-8 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a contract in the amount of $4,020.00 with the Tennessee Department of Health to provide
emergency dental care for uninsured adults ages 19 – 64 years for the time period July 1, 2014
through June 30, 2015 and to amend the Revenue and Expense Budgets by $4,020.00.



Res. No. 814-9 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a  contract with the Tennessee Department of Health to provide primary care services to
uninsured adults ages 19 – 64 years at the Ooltewah Health Center for the time period July 1,
2014 through June 30, 2015  in the amount of $22,500.00 and reduce the Revenue and
Expense Budgets by $2,500.00.

Res. No. 814-10 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a  continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health  to provide primary care
services to uninsured adults ages 19 – 64 years at the Birchwood Health Center for the time
period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 in the amount of $10,000.00 and reduce the Revenue
and Expense Budgets by $2,000.00.

Res. No. 814-11 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” by changing the speed limit
of Waconda Shores Drive, Waconda Road, and Waconda Lane from 30 miles per hour to 25
miles per hour; and Waconda Court from 30 miles per hour to 20 miles per hour.

Res. No. 814-12 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: Little Sorrel Road and Musket Lane as
extended.

Res. No. 814-13 A Resolution authorizing the slope stabilization repair of Roberts Mill Road by GeoStabilization
International amounting to $306,845.00 from the State Contract for soil nailing and authorizing
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-14 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a deed conveying Hamilton County's
interest in certain property acquired through a previous delinquent tax sale and jointly owned by
Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga.

Res. No. 814-15 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign all documents necessary to convey a
permanent water line easement to Tennessee-American Water Company for the purpose of
constructing a water transmission main upon a portion of Hamilton County-owned property.

Res. No. 814-16 A Resolution accepting the bid of Thomas Brothers Construction Company, Inc. for construction
of the Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phases I-III amounting to $11,696,858.49 and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-17 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign an amendment to the grant agreement with
the City of Chattanooga and the Tennessee Department of Transportation for $1,450,000 in
additional support for the Downtown Riverwalk.

Res. No. 814-18 A Resolution accepting the proposal of EMS Innovations, Inc. for one (1) mobile mortuary unit
amounting to $52,852.00 for the Medical Examiner’s Office and authorizing the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-19 A Resolution accepting the quotation from Tyner Terminal Railroad for track repairs at Enterprise
South Industrial Park amounting to $152,400.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 814-20 A Resolution accepting one hundred thousand ($100,000.00) of discretionary funds allotted to
County Commissioner Fred Skillern, representing Commission District 1, and allocating said
funds exclusively for the construction of a new road beginning at an intersection with Sequoyah
Road and ending at Daisy Elementary School.

Res. No. 814-21 Resolution Number 814-21 not used.

Res. No. 814-22 A Resolution appointing G. Michael Luhowiak as Public Administrator, for a term of four (4)
years, commencing this date, and ending August __, 2018 and to establish bond therefore.



ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JULY 9, 2014 
 

 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 9, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of July, 2014, a Recessed Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Boyd, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Mackey arrived during the invocation.  

Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Graham welcomed Pastor Steve Hampton, Spiritual Assembly of 

the Baha’is, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to the 

flag.  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JULY 9, 2014 
 

 

 2 

 

 

Chairman Skillern asked Commissioners and the Mayor if there was any 

business to be brought before the Recessed Meeting.  

 

Hearing none, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 9, 2014 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 9, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of July, 2014, an Agenda Preparation 

Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Boyd, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Beck arrived 

following the roll call.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 9, 2014 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• Resolution No. 714-29 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• A Juvenile Court Clerk Report for the month of May 2014 would be submitted as 
a matter of record. 

• Resolutions No. 714-21, 22, 24, 25, and 26 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

• Resolution No. 714-23 was assigned to the Roads Committee, chaired by 
Commissioner Bankston.  

•  Resolutions No. 714-27 and 714-28 were assigned to the Legal Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Fields. 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that on Monday, July 7 his son and daughter-

in-law celebrated the birth of their daughter Mallory. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JULY 9, 2014 
 
 

 3 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  July 16, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 16th day of July, 2014, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 2 

Commissioner Graham welcomed First Reader Nancy Harrison, 1st Church of 

Christ, Scientist, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to 

the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting/Agenda Preparation Session of June 25, 2014, 

and the Regular Meeting of July 2, 2014, be approved, treat same as read, made a 

matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-29  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BOND OF HAMILTON 

COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT, AND OATH OF 

DEPUTY SHERIFF. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 3 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-29.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-21 and 714-22 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-21  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF MAY 1, 2014, THROUGH 

MAY 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-22  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF POTTERS 

INDUSTRIES, LLC FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING 

AUGUST 17, 2014, THROUGH AUGUST 16, 2015, FOR REFLECTIVE GLASS 

BEADS FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 4 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-21 and 

714-22 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 714-21 and 714-22.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-23 and 714-28 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-23  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONVEY RIGHT OF WAY, 

PERMANENT DRAINAGE AND TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS TO 

THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA TO FACILITATE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FOR 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 5 

PORTIONS OF BONNY OAKS DRIVE AND VOLKSWAGEN DRIVE, KNOWN AS 

THE VOLKSWAGEN STATE INDUSTRIAL ACCESS (SIA) EXPANSION PROJECT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-28  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT & R-2 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2016 OOLTEWAH-

RINGGOLD ROAD. 

 

Commissioner Bankston provided details regarding Resolution No. 714-23 and 

stated that the Zoning Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-23.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Commissioner Bankston provided details regarding Resolution No. 714-28 and 

stated that the Zoning Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 6 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-28.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 714-24 through 714-26 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-24  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

PLAYCORE HOLDINGS, INC. DBA PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC. & GAMETIME 

FOR PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT FOR LOOKOUT VALLEY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $34,998.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-25  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 7 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION CONTRACT 

FOR $537,000.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE 

PROVISION OF BIOTERRORISM PREPAREDNESS ACTIVITIES FOR THE 12 

MONTH TIME PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 – JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-26  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 WITH THE 

CHATTANOOGA AREA URBAN LEAGUE TO PROVIDE CERTAIN CONTRACT 

COMPLIANCE SERVICES FOR A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 

AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 714-24 

through 714-26 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 714-24 through 714-26.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 8 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-27  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PAYMENT OF 

$20,000.00 TO BRANDON CARTER AND HIS ATTORNEYS, HOUSTON & ZIEBOLD 

FOR BODILY INJURY INCURRED AS A RESULT OF AN AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENT 

WITH A HAMILTON COUNTY PARKS & RECREATION VEHICLE. 

 

Commissioner Fields provided details regarding Resolution No. 714-27 and 

stated that the Legal Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-27.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern reported that a late item had been submitted for consideration 

by the Commission.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 9 

 

Upon request by Chairman Skillern, Clerk Knowles stated that the Resolution 

would be assigned the number 714-30. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 714-30  A RESOLUTION NAMING THE HARRISON 

RECREATIONAL PARK “THE BOBBY DUNN RECREATIONAL PARK”. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding the tireless efforts and community 

involvement of Bobby Dunn for more than 30 years.  He noted that members of the 

Harrison community requested that Mr. Dunn receive recognition for these valuable 

contributions.  Today’s Resolution would name the Harrison Recreational Park, located 

on Highway 58, as the Bobby Dunn Recreational Park. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 714-30.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 10 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Each member of the Commission and Chairman Skillern spoke regarding 

Volkswagen’s recent announcement that they would begin building a new sports utility 

vehicle (SUV) at their automobile plant in the Enterprise South Industrial Park. This new 

line would result in an estimated 2,000 new jobs. Members of the Commission 

expressed their appreciation for the continuous efforts of Mayor Coppinger and his 

leadership in bringing continued economic development to Hamilton County.  Thanks 

were also given to former Mayor Claude Ramsey and previous Commission members 

for their contributions to Volkswagen and other vendors choosing the County for their 

operations. 

 

Commissioner Beck reported that he had encouraged former Mayor Ramsey to 

provide an interview with a video production team sometime in the future to help 

document the evolution of the property at Enterprise South Industrial Park over the 

years. Mr. Ramsey had indicated a willingness to do so.  Commissioner Beck stated 

that a documentary of this type would help preserve this history for years to come. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 11 

Attorney Taylor asked that members of the Commission meet with him in the 

adjacent conference room following adjournment of today’s meeting in order to discuss 

a legal matter. 

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked everyone involved in the collaborative effort that 

resulted in Volkswagen’s decision to select Hamilton County for this expansion. He 

requested that Chairman Skillern consider recessing today’s meeting until Wednesday, 

July 23 to hear an item related to this expansion.  He noted that a meeting was not 

currently scheduled for that day. 

 

Chairman Skillern stated that after conclusion of today’s Commission business, 

the meeting would be recessed until Wednesday, July 23 at 9:30 AM. If no matters were 

to be brought to the Commission on that date, Attorney Taylor would so state at that 

time. Members of the Commission and media would be notified beforehand if no 

business was to occur.  

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that the Medical Examiner’s office had recently 

achieved National Association of Medical Examiner (N.A.M.E) certification.  He 

congratulated Dr. James Metcalf and his staff on receiving this accreditation. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 12 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Rick Carpenter, a resident at 3119 Chicalilly Avenue, who has addressed the 

Commission many times relating to his problem with the Hamilton County Water and 

Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA), approached the podium.  He requested 

information regarding which County entity was responsible for ensuring that the voter 

election procedures were followed. He asked whether the Election Commission was 

responsible for this. Attorney Taylor responded that they were. 

 

Clerk Knowles asked that the following report be entered into the record. 

Chairman Skillern so ordered. 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The Juvenile Court Clerk report for the month of May 2014 was submitted and 

made a matter of record.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, July 23, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 16, 2014 
 

 13 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



 

 

No. 814-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BOND OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, 
THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, AND THE CERTIFICATE OF 
DISCHARGE BY THE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION. 

 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
"HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled "THE BOND OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFF" has presented the bond of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "CERTIFICATE OF 
DISCHARGE BY THE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION" have signed the 
certificate of discharge; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants 
therefore; and 



 

 

 

 

 
2. That the person named on the listing labeled "THE BOND OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFF" is accepted and the bond therefore is approved as taken; and  
 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS" are accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and  
 
 4. That the persons named on the listing labeled "CERTIFICATE OF 

DISCHARGE BY THE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION" have signed the 
certificate of discharge; and  

 
 5. That each such person named on the listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 































































































































































CALL - Called Investment

CD - Certificate of Deposit

FHLB - Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLMC-Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE GFB-Government Funds Savings

REPORT OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INT- Interest

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 6/30/14 INV - Invested

LGIP - Local Government Investment Pool

MAT - Matured

WITH - Withdrawal

U.S. TREAS.,

DATE FUND ACTION MATURITY INSTRU- INTEREST RATE FIRST LGIP AGENCY SECUR.

MENT TENNESSEE DEPOSIT AND CD's

BALANCE 235,199,942   (0)                      14,000,000          

4/7/2014 Revolving Credit Account WITH GFB (550,000)        

4/9/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (5,000,000)     

4/11/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (4,000,000)     

Investment Pool INV CD 0.43 4,000,000            

Investment Pool WITH GFB (10,000,000)   

4/24/2014 Revolving Credit Account WITH GFB (725,000)        

Investment Pool INV GFB 8,000,000       

4/30/2014 Investment Pool INT GFB 61,870.29     61,870            

2010A Recovery Zone Bonds INT GFB 874.28          874                 

2011 Bond Fund INT GFB 15.36            15                   

2013B Refunding Bonds INT GFB 7.10              7                     

Revolving Credit Account INT GFB 1,221.97       1,222              

Teachers Retirement INT GFB 0.17              0.17                

5/8/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (10,000,000)   

5/15/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (8,000,000)     

5/20/2014 Investment Pool INV GFB 12,000,000     

5/28/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (5,000,000)     

5/29/2014 Revolving Credit Account WITH GFB (1,150,000)     



CALL - Called Investment

CD - Certificate of Deposit

FHLB - Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLMC-Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE GFB-Government Funds Savings

REPORT OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INT- Interest

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 6/30/14 INV - Invested

LGIP - Local Government Investment Pool

MAT - Matured

WITH - Withdrawal

U.S. TREAS.,

DATE FUND ACTION MATURITY INSTRU- INTEREST RATE FIRST LGIP AGENCY SECUR.

MENT TENNESSEE DEPOSIT AND CD's

5/31/2014 Investment Pool INT GFB 61,871.49     61,871            

2010A Recovery Zone Bonds INT GFB 903.68          904                 

2011 Bond Fund INT GFB 15.88            16                   

2013B Refunding Bonds INT GFB 7.34              7                     

Revolving Credit Account INT GFB 1,032.06       1,032              

Teachers Retirement INT GFB 0.18              0.18                

6/3/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (10,000,000)   

6/10/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (10,000,000)   

6/18/2014 Revolving Credit Account WITH GFB (1,070,000)     

Investment Pool WITH GFB (10,000,000)   

2011 Bond Fund WITH GFB (53,458)          

6/24/2014 Investment Pool INV GFB 10,000,000     

6/27/2014 Investment Pool WITH GFB (5,000,000)     

6/30/2014 Investment Pool INV 2 Years FHLB 0.50      4,000,000            

Revolving Credit Account WITH GFB (225,000)        

2013B Refunding Bonds WITH GFB (20,000)          

2011 Bond Fund INV GFB 458                 

Investment Pool INT GFB 53,601.79     53,602            

2010A Recovery Zone Bonds INT GFB 874.80          875                 

2011 Bond Fund INT GFB 8.72              9                     



CALL - Called Investment

CD - Certificate of Deposit

FHLB - Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLMC-Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE GFB-Government Funds Savings

REPORT OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INT- Interest

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 6/30/14 INV - Invested

LGIP - Local Government Investment Pool

MAT - Matured

WITH - Withdrawal

U.S. TREAS.,

DATE FUND ACTION MATURITY INSTRU- INTEREST RATE FIRST LGIP AGENCY SECUR.

MENT TENNESSEE DEPOSIT AND CD's

2013B Refunding Bonds INT GFB 6.92              7                     

Revolving Credit Account INT GFB 564.72          565                 

Teachers Retirement INT GFB 0.18              0.18                

BALANCE 184,589,819   (0)                      22,000,000          



 

 

No. 814-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY 
MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BEER BOARD, TERM 
EXPIRING JULY 22, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to T.C.A., Section 57-205, members of the Hamilton County 

Beer Board are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the 
Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Ed Townson to the Hamilton County 

Beer Board, term ending July 22, 2016. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment by the County Mayor of Ed Townson is hereby confirmed for the term 
as stated above; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 814-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF AN ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT FOR MOBILE LAW VEHICLE WORKSTATION SOFTWARE AND FBR 
WORKSTATION SOFTWARE AMOUNTING TO $47,396.76 FROM TRITECH 
SOFTWARE SYSTEMS FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 
THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for an annual maintenance contract for Mobile Law 

Vehicle Workstation software and FBR Workstation software amounting to 
$47,396.76 for the Sheriff’s Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, TriTech Software Systems is the sole source for maintenance for this product; 

and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $47,396.76 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from TriTech Software Systems for an annual maintenance contract for 
Mobile Law Vehicle Workstation software and FBR Workstation software for the Sheriff’s 
Department amounting to $47,396.76 is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 











 

 

No. 814-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CUSTOMER SERVICE ELECTRIC SUPPLY, 
POWER & TELEPHONE SUPPLY COMPANY, AND SHIELDS ELECTRONICS SUPPLY, INC. 
FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 6, 2014, THROUGH FEBRUARY 5, 
2015, FOR COMMUNICATIONS CABLE FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for 

communications cable for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from  Customer Service Electric Supply, Power & Telephone Supply 

Company, and Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. were considered to be the lowest and 
best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Customer Service Electric Supply, Power & Telephone Supply Company, and Shields 
Electronics Supply, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning August 6, 2014, through February 5, 2015, 
for communications cable for the Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said bids 
being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































 

 

No. 814-5 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF JUNE 1, 2014, THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between June 1, 2014, through June 30, 2014.  
 
 June 3, 2014, $23,745.69 for 8,427 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.81781 per gallon from 

Jat Oil, Inc.  
 
 June 3, 2014, $1,955.40 for 600 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 3.2590 per 

gallon from Jat Oil, Inc. 
 
 June 4, 2014, $23,261.95 for 8,413 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.7650 per gallon from 

Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 June 6, 2014, $21,560.03 for 7,727 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.79022 per gallon from 

Parman Lubricants. 
  
 June 6, 2014, $21,777.12 for 7,435 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.9290  per gallon from Jat 

Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 June 11, 2014, $21,610.90 for 7,441 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.9043 per gallon from 

Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 June 24, 2014, $24,144.83 for 8,390 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.87781 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
   
 June 25, 2014, $1,975.00 for 500 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 3.9500 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 June 26, 2014, $23,870.20 for 8,392 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.8444 per gallon from 

Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 June 26, 2014, $45,214.74 for 14,843 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.0462 per gallon from 

Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 June 27, 2014, $13,588.51 for 4,399 gallons of diesel fuel at 3.0890 per gallon from Jat 

Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 June 30, 2014, $2,735.20 for 800 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 3.4190 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
    
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 814-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF HENRY SCHEIN, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR 
CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 6, 2014, THROUGH AUGUST 5, 2015, 
FOR MEDICAL GLOVES AMOUNTING TO $9.58 PER BOX FOR EMERGENCY 
MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract pricing for 

medical gloves for Emergency Medical Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Henry Schein, Inc. amounting to $9.58 per box was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Henry Schein, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning August 6, 2014, 
through August 5, 2015, for medical gloves for Emergency Medical Services amounting to 
$9.58 per box is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























 

 

No. 814-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A 
CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $303,400.00 TO PROVIDE TUBERCULOSIS CONTROLS SERVICES  IN 
HAMILTON COUNTY FOR A TIME PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015 AND 
TO REDUCE THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY $73,200.00.  
 
WHEREAS, Tuberculosis disease continues to be a public health threat in Hamilton 

County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, appropriate and timely diagnosis, treatment and contact identification and 

preventive treatment has been proven to be an effective means of controlling 
the disease; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department provides this service to 

persons in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health provides funding to support this service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the 
amount of $303,400.00 for the provision of Tuberculosis prevention and 
control services for the residents of Hamilton County and to reduce the 
revenue and expense budgets by $73,200.00.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 





















































 

 

No. 814-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $4,020.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO 
PROVIDE EMERGENCY DENTAL CARE FOR UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 – 64 YEARS 
FOR THE TIME  PERIOD JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015 AND TO AMEND THE 
REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY $4,020.00. 
 
WHEREAS, poor oral health has been linked to detrimental chronic health conditions; and                                                  
 
WHEREAS, many adults are without adequate dental insurance to cover the expense of 

emergency dental care; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State has identified funds to provide support for adult emergency dental 

care in certain health facilities in Tennessee; and 
 
WHEREAS, this program and services is for the health and well-being of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the amount of  
$4,020.00 for the time period of July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 and amend the revenue 
and expense budgets by $4,020.00. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 











































 

 

No. 814-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A  CONTRACT 
WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  TO PROVIDE PRIMARY CARE 
SERVICES TO UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 – 64 YEARS AT THE OOLTEWAH HEALTH 
CENTER FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015  IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $22,500.00 AND REDUCE THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY $2,500.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the Bureau of TennCare has disenrolled thousands of Hamilton County 

residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, primary care services are needed to treat uninsured adults who are seeking sick 

or preventive health care; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Health Department’s Ooltewah  Health Center  
   met the qualifications for this grant and provides this service to persons  
   in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health had received the authority to distribute 

funds for the provision of these services in Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

that the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the 
amount of $22,500.00 for the provision of primary care services to uninsured 
adults and reduce the revenue and expense budgets by $2,500.00.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 















































 

 

No. 814-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A  
CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  TO 
PROVIDE PRIMARY CARE SERVICES TO UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 – 64 YEARS AT 
THE BIRCHWOOD HEALTH CENTER FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 
30, 2015 IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 AND REDUCE THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE 
BUDGETS BY $2,000.00. 

 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Health Department’s Birchwood Health Center  
   met the qualifications for this grant and provides this service to persons  
   in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health had received the authority to distribute 

funds for the provision of these services in Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health provides funding to support this service. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

that the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the 
amount of $10,000.00 for primary care services at the Birchwood Health 
Center and reduce the revenue and expense budgets by $2,000.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 















































 

 

No. 814-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” BY CHANGING THE SPEED LIMIT OF WACONDA SHORES DRIVE, 
WACONDA ROAD, AND WACONDA LANE FROM 30 MILES PER HOUR TO 25 
MILES PER HOUR; AND WACONDA COURT FROM 30 MILES PER HOUR TO 20 
MILES PER HOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, the above mentioned roadways, located in the Waconda Shore Estates 

Subdivision, off of North Hickory Valley Road, in the 2nd Civil District, the 
9th County Commission District; having speeding issues within the 
subdivision; and, 

 
WHEREAS, as requested by the Waconda Shore Estates Homeowners Association; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the speed limit on these roads needs to be reduced as described above. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” be amended to provide a 

speed limit of 25 miles per hour on Waconda Shores Drive, Waconda Road, 
and Waconda Lane; and 20 miles per hour on Waconda Court. 

 
 2. That violation of the posted speed limit as established herein shall be a 

misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by laws of the State. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 814-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: Little Sorrel Road and Musket Lane as 
extended. 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Stonewall Farm 

Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 
of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
ROAD NAME                          DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Little Sorrel Road Little Sorrel Road is in the 3rd Civil District, 

the 3rd County Commission District in the 
Stonewall Farm Subdivision on State Tax 
Map Number 92, leading from Musket Lane 
0.24 Miles north to a turnaround and south 
to a temporary turnaround, has a 50’ right-
of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built 
by Barry Higgins and Card Paving Company 
for the Developer Fatherson Partnership 
Two. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 

M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ROAD NAME                                                       DESCRIPTION 
 
   
Musket Lane Resolution No. 807-13 dated August 1, 2007 

shows the mileage of Musket Lane as being 
0.09 miles, described as leading from 
Jackson Mill Drive; and, whereas, a new 
extension of Musket Lane was constructed 
leading from the existing Musket Lane east 
0.10 miles to Little Sorrel Drive, has a 50' 
right-of-way, a 8" stone base, a 2" plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built 
by Barry Higgins Construction and Card 
Paving for the Developer Fatherson 
Partnership Two; and, whereas, Musket 
Lane is in the 3rd   Civil District, the 3rd 
County Commission District in the 
Stonewall Farm Subdivision on State Tax 
Map Number 92, as being 0.19 miles  
leading from Jackson Mill Road east to a 
turnaround and  west to little Sorrel Road.  

  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 
M.P.H. and that violation of the same, when 
posted, shall be a misdemeanor and 
punishable as such as provided by the laws 
of the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

No. 814-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE STABILIZATION REPAIR OF ROBERTS MILL 
ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION INTERNATIONAL AMOUNTING TO $306,845.00 FROM THE 
STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL NAILING AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Roberts Mill Road in Hamilton County has exhibited two areas that require slope 

stabilization along the roadway.  The areas requiring stabilization total approximately 
230 feet of roadside escarpment.  The repairs require specialized geotechnical design 
and construction methods that can be provided by GeoStabilization International; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the contract unit pricing for the slope stabilization repairs is available to County 

entities from the State contract with this company, amounting to $306,845.00; and, 
 
WHEREAS, utilizing GeoStabilization International from the State Contract is the most feasible and 

economical means of providing the needed slope stabilization repairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Hamilton County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available for this improvement in the County’s line of credit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the slope stabilization repairs, in the amount of $306,845.00 by GeoStabilization International 
utilizing the State Contract is hereby approved, being the best and most economical source, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 













 

 

No. 814-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A DEED 
CONVEYING HAMILTON COUNTY’S INTEREST IN CERTAIN PROPERTY ACQUIRED 
THROUGH A PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALE AND JOINTLY OWNED BY HAMILTON 
COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA. 
 
WHEREAS, in 2013 Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga jointly acquired properties 

through a delinquent tax sale; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Coca-Cola is obtaining the rights to the property at 6060 Shallowford Road, 

formerly known as the Olan Mills Property, and would like to obtain the interest in 
two back tax properties located adjacent to the Olan Mills property; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga has requested that Hamilton County convey its interest in 

said properties to the City of Chattanooga for future conveyance to Coca-Cola to 
serve as a buffer area and to further promote the Economic Development of the 
existing parcel at 6060 Shallowford Road, and to address the co-existence of the 
Shepherd Community and the new Coke United Facility, a copy of said request is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference thereto; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated 67-5-2509(d)(1) provides that Hamilton County may 

convey to other governmental entities property which Hamilton County has 
obtained through delinquent tax sales upon certification that the property is needed 
for a public purpose and is subject to condemnation under the power of eminent 
domain; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners’ Delinquent Tax Property Special 

Committee has reviewed said request and it is the recommendation of said Special 
Committee that the request be granted. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

 That the request made by the City of Chattanooga that Hamilton County convey its interest in 
jointly-owned properties, be granted pursuant to T.C.A. 67-5-2509(d)(1) and that the County 



 

 

 

 

Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a deed conveying Hamilton County’s interest in said 
properties to the City of Chattanooga. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 
  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 







 

 

No. 814-15 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO CONVEY A PERMANENT  WATER LINE EASEMENT TO 
TENNESSEE-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSTRUCTING A WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN UPON A PORTION OF 
HAMILTON COUNTY-OWNED PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County owns certain property located on Bonny Oaks Drive known 

as the Tyner Redoubt Soccer Complex and identified by State Tax Map No. 
139-001.01; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  a portion of this property is needed by the Tennessee-American Water 

Company (Tennessee-American) to construct and maintain a water 
transmission main replacement along a portion of Bonny Oaks Drive as 
required to facilitate the State Industrial Access/VW Expansion project by the 
Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) to benefit the Enterprise 
South Industrial Park; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  Tennessee-American requests that Hamilton County grant a permanent 

easement consisting of thirty-six hundredths (0.36) acres for use by 
Tennessee-American, according to the terms and conditions described in the 
attached or similar easement document and drawing; and, 

  
WHEREAS,   Tennessee-American has offered to pay the appraised value of four thousand 

dollars ($4,000) for said easement; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  location of said easement has been reviewed by representatives of Hamilton 

County and will not adversely affect the current or future use of the 
recreational facility located there; and, 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of Hamilton County to grant said easement to facilitate 

roadway improvements and for the continued economic benefit and 
development of the Enterprise South Industrial Park. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
 That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all documents 

necessary to convey to Tennessee-American Water Company a permanent 
water line easement consisting of thirty-six hundredths (0.36) acres for the 
purpose of constructing and maintaining a water transmission main 
replacement upon a portion of County-owned property located on Bonny 
Oaks Drive, known as the Tyner Redoubt Soccer Complex and identified as 
State Tax Map No. 139-001.01, in accordance with the terms and conditions 
more particularly described in the attached or similar easement document and 
drawing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.    
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 





















 

 

No. 814-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF THOMAS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE TENNESSEE RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN 
SEGMENT PHASES I-III AMOUNTING TO $11,696,858.49 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phases I-III; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Thomas Brothers Construction Company, Inc. in the  amount of 

$11,696,858.49 was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding will be paid by federal and state grant funds in the amount of $6,785,481.00; 

private donations in the amount of $3,166,978.00; public funds in the amount of 
$1,744,399.49 with 50% paid by the City of Chattanooga and 50% paid by Hamilton 
County; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s line of credit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Thomas Brothers Construction Company, Inc. for construction of the Tennessee 
Riverwalk Downtown Segment Phases I-III amounting to $11,696,858.49 is hereby accepted; said bid 
being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



























 

 

No. 814-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN AN AMENDMENT 
TO THE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND THE 
TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR $1,450,000 IN ADDITIONAL 
SUPPORT FOR THE DOWNTOWN RIVERWALK.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County have been given additional funds 

for the construction of the Downtown Riverwalk; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the project will expand our award-winning Riverwalk trail system from Ross’s 

Landing to St. Elmo and afford our citizens an alternate route for walking and 
biking away from heavily trafficked thoroughfares; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Riverwalk will stimulate new development, improve the 

appearance of our riverfront, and enhance its security; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the project has been awarded $1,160,000 in grant support, and the required 

match of $290,000 will be met with private funds; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an amended grant agreement with the City of 
Chattanooga and the Tennessee Department of Transportation for construction of the 
Downtown Riverwalk, and funding in the amount of $1,450,000 will be accounted through the 
Riverpark Capital Fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND 
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 814-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF EMS INNOVATIONS, INC. FOR 
ONE (1) MOBILE MORTUARY UNIT AMOUNTING TO $52,852.00 FOR THE 
MEDICAL EXAMINER’S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 

mobile mortuary unit for the Medical Examiner’s Office; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal from EMS Innovations, Inc. amounting to $52,852.00 was 

considered to be the lowest and best proposal received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal of EMS Innovations, Inc. for one (1) mobile mortuary unit amounting to 
$52,852.00 for Medical Examiner’s Office is hereby accepted, said proposal being the lowest 
and best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary 
to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 814-19 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION FROM TYNER TERMINAL 
RAILROAD FOR TRACK REPAIRS AT ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK 
AMOUNTING TO $152,400.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga jointly own the rail lines that 

support industry at Enterprise South Industrial Park (ESIP) 
 
WHEREAS,  Under old Memorandum of Understanding 6.4 with VW, the County, City 

and the State of Tennessee agreed to equally share the cost of improvements 
to the rail lines at ESIP; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  A project to repair a retaining wall which was approved under Resolution 

1013-16 must now be expanded to include the stabilization of the adjacent 
track; and,  

 
WHERAS, This project must be undertaken while the railroad is in daily operation 

serving VW, ADM and other customers; and,  
 
WHEREAS Tyner Terminal Railroad is the sole source for the project, as they are the 

contracted operator of the ESIP rail system; and, 
 
WHEREAS Tyner Terminal Railroad has submitted a quotation for the additional work 

based on the scope of work submitted by the project’s engineer; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development will 

fund the State’s share of the cost through an amendment to the FastTrack 
Infrastructure Development grant approved under Resolution 1111-21 and 
approval to apply for this grant amendment is included in this Resolution; and 

 
  



 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Tyner Terminal Railroad for track repairs at Enterprise South 
Industrial Park amounting to $152,400.00 is hereby accepted and that the County Mayor has 
the authority to sign any and all contracts and documents necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 814-20 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($100,000.00) OF DISCRETIONARY FUNDS ALLOTTED TO COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER FRED SKILLERN, REPRESENTING COMMISSION DISTRICT 1, 
AND ALLOCATING SAID FUNDS EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
A NEW ROAD BEGINNING AT AN INTERSECTION WITH SEQUOYAH ROAD 
AND ENDING AT DAISY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.  
 

WHEREAS,  by previous acts of this county legislative body, each  
County Commissioner is allotted funds in each fiscal 
year’s budget, identified as “Discretionary Funds”, which 
shall be spent as designated by each respective 
Commissioner for physical projects within Hamilton 
County; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Fred Skillern, Commissioner representing Commission 

District 1, has in excess of One Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($100,000.00) remaining to his credit as said 
Discretionary Funds, which he desires to be allocated for 
the construction of a new road within District 1 
beginning at an intersection with Sequoyah Road (its 
point of origin) and ending at Daisy Elementary School; 
and  

 
WHEREAS,  said expenditure is deemed by this county legislative 

body to be in the best interest of the citizens of this 
county. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the designation and allocation by County Commissioner Fred Skillern,  
representing Commission District 1, of One Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($100,000.00) for the construction of a new road beginning at an intersection 
with Sequoyah Road and ending at Daisy Elementary School is hereby 
approved and accepted, and the County Finance Department is hereby directed 
to so budget said funds. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 814-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
August 6, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING G. MICHAEL LUHOWIAK AS PUBLIC 
ADMINISTRATOR, FOR A TERM OF FOUR (4) YEARS, COMMENCING THIS 
DATE, AND ENDING AUGUST __, 2018 AND TO ESTABLISH BOND THEREFORE. 
 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated §§ 30-1-401 – 30-1-408 provides for the county 

legislative body (“County Commission”) to appoint a public administrator, 
guardian and trustee and establish the amount of the bond therefore; and 

  

WHEREAS, G. Michael Luhowiak, licensed to practice law since 1972, BPR # 001019, 
is duly qualified to be appointed. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That we do hereby appoint G. Michael Luhowiak as the Public Administrator for a term of 
four (4) years, commencing on this date and ending August ____, 2018, and continuing until 
such time as a successor shall be duly qualified and appointed, subject to tendering a bond in 
the amount of $100,000.00, with good and sufficient sureties, and premium payment of which 
shall be paid from the County General Fund; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

August 6, 2014 

  
Date 

 



G. Michael Luhowiak 
Spears, Moore, Rebman & Williams 

6th Floor, 801 Broad Street 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

 
 

College University of Tennessee, B.S., 1968 
  

Law School University of Tennessee, J.D., 1972 
  

Admitted 1972, Tennessee, BPR 001019, U.S. District Court, Eastern District of Tennessee and 
U.S. Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. 

  

Member 

Chattanooga Bar Association (Member, Board of Governors, 1982-1984; Secretary-
Treasurer, 1998; President Elect, 1999; President, 2000) 
Tennessee Bar Association 
American Bar Association 
Federation of Defense and Corporate Counsel 
Defense Research Institute 
Tennessee Defense Lawyers Association 
American Inns of Court (Master of the Bench) 
Phi Delta Phi 

  

Fellow Chattanooga Bar Foundation 
Tennessee Bar Foundation 

 
Mr. Luhowiak has over 42 years of experience in the general practice of law with an emphasis in litigation. He has 
tried a multitude of cases in Tennessee Chancery and Circuit Courts as well as Federal Courts, primarily 
representing defendants. His practice areas are construction, employment, estate administration and probate, 
insurance, and professional negligence. 
 
He has been very active in legal professional organizations being a member of the American, Tennessee and 
Chattanooga Bar Associations as well as the Defense Research Institute and the Tennessee Defense Lawyers 
Association. He has served on the Board of Governors and as the Secretary/Treasurer and President of the 
Chattanooga Bar Association. He currently serves on the Legal Malpractice Insurance Committee of the Tennessee 
Bar Association. 
 
Mr. Luhowiak’s legal expertise and knowledge have been acknowledged professionally through his selection as a 
Fellow of the Chattanooga Bar Foundation and of the Tennessee Bar Foundation; only lawyers who are judged to 
have outstanding records of service to the bar and to the community are so honored. In 2003 he was elected to 
membership in the Federation of Defense and Corporate Counsel. He is also listed in the National Registry of 
Who’s Who. He has been awarded an AV Peer Review Rating with Martindale-Hubble, the highest rating 
attainable for legal competence and ethics. 
 
Mr. Luhowiak has also been active in the community and civic areas serving on the Board of the American Heart 
Association and the Volunteer Community School. He currently serves as a Deacon of the Signal Mountain 
Presbyterian Church and has been on numerous church committees.  
 

http://www.spearsmoore.com/taxtrustsestates.html
http://www.spearsmoore.com/Business.html
http://www.spearsmoore.com/Business.html
http://www.spearsmoore.com/Business.html

	8-6-14 Staff Packet with notes
	814-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting July 9 2014_1002_07-09-14 Recessed
	814-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session July 9 2014_1001_07-09-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	814-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting July 16 2014_1003_07-16-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	814-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary Public_1018_08-06-14
	814-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary Public_1018_08-06-14 A
	814-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report June 2014_995_Trustee Excess Fee Report June 2014
	814-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report June 2014_992_Trustee Monthly Report June 2014
	814-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon 7 14 2014_1000_Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - 86-1
	814-_S_Report_Report Fee Office Reports_1027_Fee Office Repts (2)
	814-_S_Report_Report Quarterly Investment Report_1026_4th Quarter063014
	814-2_R_Appointment(s)_Beer Board Reappointment_1019_Bd 17
	814-3_R_Sheriff Hammond_Annual Maintenance Contract for Mobile Law Vehicle Workstation Software & FBR Workstation Software_991_RES. SOLE SOURCE TRITECH MOBILE LAW SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
	814-3_S_Sheriff Hammond_Annual Maintenance Contract for Mobile Law Vehicle Workstation Software & FBR Workstation Software_991_Tritech Software Annual Software Support
	814-4_R_Bill McGriff_Communications Cable Contract_1013_RES. COMMUNICATIONS CABLE CONTRACT
	814-4_S_Bill McGriff_Communications Cable Contract_1013_Communications Cable Contract
	814-5_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel June 2014_990_Fuel Resolution June 2014
	814-5_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel June 2014_990_Fuel Resolution June 2014 supporting docs
	814-6_R_Don Allen_Hi Risk EMS Medical Gloves_997_RES. HI RISK EMS MEDICAL GLOVES
	814-6_S_Don Allen_Hi Risk EMS Medical Gloves_997_Hi Risk EMS Medical Gloves
	814-7_R_Becky Barnes_TB Control Services_996_TB Resolution 2015
	814-7_S_Becky Barnes_TB Control Services_996_TB Control Services  Contract 2015
	814-8_R_Becky Barnes_Emergency Dental Care_1014_Resolution Dental Safety Net 2015
	814-8_S_Becky Barnes_Emergency Dental Care_1014_Emergency Dental Care Contract 2015
	814-9_R_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Services at Ooltewah Health Center_1015_OHC Primary Care 2015
	814-9_S_Becky Barnes_Primary Care Services at Ooltewah Health Center_1015_Ooltewah Primary Care Contract 2015
	814-10_R_Becky Barnes_Birchwood Primary Care_1016_Birchwood Primary Care Resolution 2015
	814-10_S_Becky Barnes_Birchwood Primary Care_1016_Birchwood Primary Care Contract 2015
	814-11_R_Todd Leamon_Change Speed Limit on Waconda Shores Drive Waconda Road Waconda Court and Waconda Lane._1008_resolutionwacondaroad
	814-12_R_Todd Leamon_Adding new subdivision roads_1009_resolutionstonewallfarms
	814-12_S_Todd Leamon_Adding new subdivision roads_1009_StonewallFarmsupporting
	814-13_R_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization Repair for Roberts Mill Road_1010_RES. SLOPE STABILIZATION REPAIR ROBERTS MILL RD.
	814-13_S_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization Repair for Roberts Mill Road_1010_Slope Stabilization Repair for Roberts Mill Rd.
	814-14_R_Todd Leamon_Convey City County Back Tax Property to City for Coca Cola_1021_Res. Back Tax Properties Coca-Cola
	814-14_S_Todd Leamon_Convey City County Back Tax Property to City for Coca Cola_1021_Res. Attachments Coca-Cola
	814-15_R_Todd Leamon_Tennessee American Water Company request for water line easement_1017_Res. TAWC Easement Redoubt
	814-15_S_Todd Leamon_Tennessee American Water Company request for water line easement_1017_Res. TAWC--attachment
	814-16_R_Todd Leamon_Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Construction_1012_RES. RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT
	814-16_S_Todd Leamon_Tennessee Riverwalk Downtown Segment Construction_1012_RIVERWALK DOWNTOWN SEGMENT
	814-17_R_County Mayor_Riverwalk amendment with the City of Chattanooga and TDOT_1011_Resolution Riverwalk City and TDOT II 8 6 14
	814-18_R_Medical Examiner_Mobile Mortuary Unit_998_RES. MOBILE MORTUARY UNIT
	814-18_S_Medical Examiner_Mobile Mortuary Unit_998_Mobile Morturay Unit
	814-19_R_Dan Saieed_ESIP Rail Track Stabilization Project_1005_ESIP Rail Track Stabilization Project Project
	814-20_R_Rheubin Taylor_Commissioner Skillerns Discretionary Funds_1023_Template -Skillern Discretionary Funds
	814-22_R_Lee Akers_Appointment_1024_Resolution Appointing G Michael Luhowiak as Public Administrator
	814-22-S_Lee Arkers_Appointment_1024 Resolution appointinig G Michael Luhowiak as Public Administrator

